
UNCLASSIFIED 
U.S. Department of State 
Case No. F-2015-04841 
Doc No. C05739732 
Date: 05/13/2015 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

STATE DEPT. - PRODUCED TO HOUSE SELECT BENGHAZI COMM, 
SUBJECT TO AGREEMENT ON SENSITIVE INFORMATION & REDACTIONS. NO FOIA WAIVER. 

Abedin, HUnla <AbedinH@state.gov> 
Sunday, August 21,2011 9:26 AM 
H 
Jeffupdate 

RELEASE IN 
FULL 

Contrast between 8en.lhazl and reportsfrQrt'I the West: ~rl! In Bengha~1 since Thur$d~v) I have joined (>ur 
representative, Chris Stevens, In meetings with a larte number of representativ·es from the -me, civil ~cjety, UN 
organizations and NGOs, .tid the dIplomatiC torps. While we h.d nO Ide .. that Q.ur trip woulJi correspond with signlflqmt 
mUitaIVattvlnee5 in the east and the 'Sta"Of the coordinal~ Trlpoll uprlslnl dub~ "Qperatlon Merm.aid Dawn," ~he. 
timirii ... veU! the opt)Onunlty to note the cOlltl1istbetween: the relatl~ bureaucratlt quiet hitr. compared to· hyped~up 
.ctlvity hi western Ubyi. Clearly, some c.oOrdinacioh Is underway betWeen lenlhlli .rld the west: AU Tarhounl, recently 
promob!d tOD~putV PI1meMinistet In II still-lo-b~omple •• d cabln~t relhl,dle, previewed theJrlpolt uprislnslNith us, 
down almost totherninute. Yet one feels that, to a large .itten~; TNt offfClalslnl observers and chroniclers rather than 
the authors of the unfoldl~ developments to th~ west. {In a telling anecdotei JUSt after confiding in us the ptans far 
TripOli about to unfold, Tlrhounl turned off hisiinglng celi phone~ to tOn£eiitrate on talking to us In a leisurely 
manner.} What TNC officials told us to a large extent was se.nsibie and mostly reassuring in its content -. and the TN.C 
just issued a directivl! rei.terating Its policy to treat combatants according to the GerievCl conventions and observe human 
rights -- but their commen~5 fell mostly In the .category of passive analysis rather than aggressive forward 
thinking. Washingto" has task for,es in focused on Tripoli; Benghali does not. 

While there's a sen~e in the air that the finCiI battles have begun, that palpable anticipation does not seem to have 
translated Into the type of stepped~l.Ip bure/ilucratic iicll\,lty that om~ would expect. After meeting with us for !l~arly two 
hours, on Thursday, TN(: Ex~cutlveCom.m.lttee chair (and PM·~quivalE!l)t) MClhmoyd Ji.bril r~turned to Doha ratMr than 
head any kin<! of Waf rOOm here. I was on .the ground far longer than Jlbril, ~Mng another cCl-rneo appearan.ce 
here. Ti,lrhouniconflded that there Is no plan for when O~ how the TIlle wlJul~ relocate: qui~1y to TrippU. should TtipoH 
fall. TNC ~hClirman M\;Ista.fa AbduljaHl (wllo re!l1ains by all accounts a unifying figl.lr~ h~re) Is a b~mbl~, retiring leac;ier; 
whIch Clftef o.adhafi's. flamboYance Js Part of the attraction for libyansbut which does not mClke him naturally th.ink of 
how to project TNC iiuthotity and syrribQUsrn quh:;kly .to the ne-Wly Ii~r.ai:ed areas. The que$t[on iSI when Tripoli faUs, d.o 
the extensive plans that the TNC has made about the post,.Qadhati tran$ltIQn.~J$tructure:s have aoy releviilnce for 
Tripon? I do not want to overplay this: the flags b:el~' raised In the weste.rotowns are the flags used here. Our VisIt to 
the miiltaryc:ommand t~r)ter demonstrated that there Is activ@ information flow (if n()t exactly command and control I 
passing between east andw~st. T~rhouni and others Who visitwestemtownsj usuallv front TUnis, describe ~upport 
there:ahd from trjballead~r$ aqass libya. No· ottu~r g(Oli'psareC.iaimiJlglo ha.ve ~stabIi5.hed Of planned fora., 
~Iternative clvitlanauthorlty to compete W.ith the TNC. Stili; iii our engagement with TNt (lffldals, We Will need to 
remind them continually ofthehnperatlve to nurture their legitimacy and authOrity and to prevent a political vacuum 
that others couldfill-- especially after Tripoli falls and the fNt is here, notthere. 

We've. talked a l.ot about Tripoli and whether a battle for the capital could be avoided t which we argued would be the 
best solution. One of the INCis assets is the moral distinction between whatthe libya that the TNC aspires to promote 
and how Uadhafihas treated Libya's citizenS, The world's attention will focus on a battle for Tripoli, we cautioned, and 
acts of brutality and revenge and potential internal fights among competIng militias will blur that moral distinction even 
more than the assassination of Tf'IC Chief of Staff Abdulfatah Younis already did. The damage to the TNC's credibility 
Could be irreparable, We also rioted that a TNCcied negotiation that succeeds in winningTripoli withpl.lt· a fight wo:uld 
underscore the TNC leadership far more dramatically than a successful militia assault only vi;lguely:connecte~ to the 
Benehaii leadership. The TNC offiCials heard us out patiently, but they clearly were not in the mood t() negqtlate. They 
feel confident about the current military Situation, and they remain convinced that Q~4hafi simply Will not give LIP nil 
matter how high the pressure. If anything, their positions have hardened in recent weeks, with Abduljalil telling us that 
the TNC will no longer contemplate Qadhafi staying in libya once he is out of power. Salf Qadhafi is seen in the same 
category as his/ather. I do not believe that anything short of a significant change -- Qadhafi's departure, a military 
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settl!lck that punctures the TNC's c;url'ent confidence, NATO insisting on a pause in operations in favor of negotiations -­
Will persuade the TNC leadership tllat it is In their interest right now to offer Qadhafi a peaceful way out. Tarhouni also 
acknowledged with his trademark candor that, to the Libyan people right now, negotiation~ wOl,lld appear Weak and 
not a satisfactory climax to the revolution. They do have a point that, despite signs of desperation around Qadhafi (e.g., 
Mohammed Ismail's multiple attempts to contact Gene Ctetz and me), there is no indication that Qadhafi himself Is 
prepared to thrdw In the towel. There is real fear that, should Qadhafi SOmehow make it from Tripoli to 5ebha, a guerilla 
war could persist for years, with supplies and mercernarles smuggled across the Saharan border. 

Among Q.thl!r topics .. we pusht!dthe TNC officials hard on starting a high-profile diSCUSSion iminediitelyOh the 
reg,nclfiatiO(! which is part ()f the TNC's platform. We noted that the many victims of Qadhafl's 42-year rule will be less 
likely to pursue Individual acts¢ re~"Ie If they are assured that there will be some fOrm to address grievances thro·lIgh 
role.-of-Iaw accountability. The samemessl lt! shQuld also appeal to averale lIt)yans who for whatever ruson remajned 
~$ partqf Qadhafl's ~8frne to the endbtn Who I'IaVie no blQod on their hands and milht otherwl$e f.ilrrelrIlJution. TNt 
officjals r~r.pprovln.1y to the Squth A~I~n and MoI'CICCI" models, and they reiterated t~elr ~omrnJtrn.nt for an 
Inclusive pl'OftSS for Ubyil'sfuture that weltOmes all but the most notoriQUs Individuals around <ladhlfl. V.ttheystill 
seem to rely laraely on (variously described) luck, trlbel dls/:lpllne, Ind the "gentle character" of tht! UbYlo people as the 
best assurancesagaln:stabuse and revenge klllln.s; We will contlnoe to push on this. 

Benghazi {,mainedfUlJofch.ttei' aooutthe AbdOifatah Youhls .,sas.sihation. With tribal viSits and Investigatio.i1 
committees and cabinet charile5, the TNt addressed the immediate cfisis suffidently effecth/elyth:at the Inti hi I teilsion 
.and gunflrequkkly diSSipated. But the assassination hIghliQhted two fealitles of Libyan Ufe that tNt offldalsnad 
previously tried to downplay: tribes and militias. Rather than denying the tribiil affiliations of libyans, TNC officials are 
now looking to the 'tribes as part of the solution in enforcing discipline and preventing the type of wldescale loodng and 
pillagIng that destroyed Benghazi's security infrastructure In March. tribes, we heard, can alSo be a corrective balance 
to Islamistieanings. On reining in the militias, we heard no gOQdanswers. Some people (Tarhouni, TNC National 
Security AdVisor Sazama, some civil society representatives) spoke frankly about the problem, indudingthe Islamist 
leanings of the most powerful. The Islamist militias deserve more discussion in other channels, but a couple .of people 
noted that the Younts assassination had an upside In making scrutiny of this-Issue Imperative. Others seemed to rely, 
again, on luck or tried to avert their eyes fulm the problem that militias could post on the Day After; There. was: 
Widespread disdain forQ.,ataf's role In eO(:o.l.I~glng certain militia elemeni~,and I will be at:l.le~o cite tots of conc~rn here 
when I go to Dohal~er. Q.at'ar'$ r9·le, too, is asublect betterdi5Cussedelsewhere. 

We also discu.ssed l:lumanitariAln and financial h~~d$. Tarhourti andJibril noted that th~ TNC's financial needs increase a.s 
rnor!~. t~rritory ' f;JUs \lnderrebel control; they ar\'! worried that, .If they can't prov1deelect.ricity to ne:wly IibeJated towns 
Qr flJod ot~~r serJl~.s there, dr~encl'\i3ntlllent with tht:! TNCwillgrow, TartlOunl agreed to ~ach ~ut to the Indians to 
djscussLibya's outstanding d~ptsi to see Ifhe can help us get India's hold on the frozen a$$et PJ"po$aIHfted. Briefed on 
SOlltn Afric!I's objection$,Jlb,'illlnderstood the need for contin.uild outreClch to Africa (althQlJgh part pfoor·Solith Afrka 
Pfc:>ble.m may derive fr9rnJlbril'$ poor relations with Zuma; with Jibril tellln~ us that he recentlYiJccused· Zuma of making 
Neison Malidela feel ashamed); Abdulrahman Shalgam wiIJgo to: the August 25-26 AU Summit atid JJbrll did notruJe out 
attending himself. "ve spoken several times to UAE Foreign Minister Abdullah bin Zayed since arriVing iiere,and the 
UAE has finally r.espOride.d pO$it/vely to our soft <,dllate,.,,1 proposal for a loan to the TNC, Whk~iTlay be out faStest way 
()f8~~ing flJnd$ here, assuming we can corne up with a letter tbat meets the WAE'S heeds and passes the scrutiny of the 
U.S. interagency process. 

My traiieling companions, Bill Roebuck (NEA/MAG director) and Ben FIshman from the NSS, start their return trip today. 
I will goon to cairo, DOha;al1.d Ab!.i Dhabi, where; inter alia, I will have more Libyadistussibhs, inciuding seeing Jibri! 
again iii DQha. With Nilesat continuing to broadcast Qadhilfi's propaganda, the Libyan anger over Egypt's role 
41PproaChes if hOt e)Cceeds annoyance with Qataar. Weare also checking on how to get from Cairo bad here, shpuld I 
need to join Chris here In the comIng days:. . 

Chds and his tiny staffare doing a heroic job in representing our interests here. I am especially appreCiative to OS for alI 
.the wor~done to SUPflprt my trip. I also want to highlight the work that Pat Kennedy's M family and NEA/EX did in 
est;ibliishing IiYing a.nd working qllarters for Chris and his team. Thanks to a lot of creativity and hard work; the 
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environment for AmerIcan 5tttff here is slgnifk;antfy improved over what I saw two months ago when we were located In 
the d<Jwnt<Jwn Tibe~ Hotel. 
-- Jeff 
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